MAJORITY MEMBERS:

VIRGINIA FOXX, NORTH CAROLINA, Chairwoman

JOE WILSON, SOUTH CAROLINA GLENN THOMPSON, PENNSYLVANIA TIM WALBERG, MICHIGAN GLENN GROTHMAN, WISCONSIN ELISE M. STEFANIK, REW YORK RICK W. ALLEN, GEORGIA JIM BANKS, INDIANAA JAMES COMER, KENTUCKY LLOYD SMUCKER, PENNSYLVANIA BURGESS OWENS, UTAH BOB GOOD, VIRGINIA LISA C. MCCLAIN, MICHIGAN MARY E. MILLER, ILLINOIS MICHELLE STEEL, CALIFORNIA RON ESTES, KANSAS JULIA LETLOW, LOUISIANA KEVIN KILEY, CALIFORNIA AARON BEAN, FLORIDA AARON BEAN, FLORIDA ERIC BURLISON MISSOURI NATHANIEL MORAN, TEXAS JOHN JAMES, MICHIGAN BRANDON WILLIANS, NEW YORK ERIN HOUCHIN, INDIANA



COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND THE WORKFORCE U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 2176 RAYBURN HOUSE OFFICE BUILDING WASHINGTON, DC 20515-6100

February 24, 2023

MINORITY MEMBERS:

ROBERT C. "BOBBY" SCOTT, VIRGINIA, Ranking Member

RAÚL M. GRIJALVA, ARIZONA JOE COURTNEY, CONNECTICUT GREGORIO KILILI CAMACHO SABLAN, NORTHERN MARIANA ISLANDS FREDERICA S. WILSON, FLORIDA SUZANNE BONAMICI, OREGON MARK TAKANO, CALIFORNIA ALMA S. ADAMS, NORTH CAROLINA MARK TAKANO, CALIFORNIA MARK TAKANO, CALIFORNIA MARK TAKANO, CALIFORNIA MARK TAKANO, CALIFORNIA SUSAN WILD, PENNSYLVANIA LUCY MCBATH, GEORGIA JAHANA HAYES, CONNECTICUT ILHAN OMAR, MINNESOTA HALEY M. STEVENS, MICHIGAN TERESA LEGER FENAÁNDEZ, NEW MEXICO KATHY E. MANNING, NORTH CAROLINA FRANK J. MRVAN, INDIANA JAMAAL BOWMAN, NEW YORK

Dear Secretary Cardona,

We write to you regarding the recent revelations surrounding classified documents held at the Penn Biden Center for Diplomacy and Global Engagement ("Center").¹ We are concerned with the University of Pennsylvania's (UPenn) involvement in the matter and whether the institution violated section 117 of the *Higher Education Act of 1965*,² breaking the barrier between academic freedom and national security.

Coincidentally, less than a month prior to Attorney General Garland's appointment of a special counsel to investigate the matter,³ your Department of Education (Department) announced it was abandoning robust scrutiny of section 117 violations and was moving section 117 enforcement efforts from the Office of the General Counsel (OGC) to the Office of Federal Student Aid (FSA).⁴ FSA was never designed to handle such serious matters and it does not have the capability or expertise needed to do so. The relocation of the enforcement activities to FSA was done despite the fact that enforcement efforts undertaken by the OGC led to the reporting of \$6.5 billion in previously undisclosed foreign contributions, including foreign contributions made to UPenn.⁵ Indeed, following the Center's launch in 2017, UPenn saw a nearly 400 percent increase in reportable gifts and contracts.⁶ This alarming spike in foreign donations also included approximately \$22 million in anonymous donations from China.⁷

Your actions in light of these revelations are yet another example of this administration's failure to protect students, institutions, and taxpayers against threats posed by our foreign adversaries on college campuses. As the Committee responsible for oversight of your Department's inaction, we request the following information no later than two weeks after the date of this letter:

1. Any and all communications or documents associated with the decision to move the enforcement of section 117 from OGC to FSA;

¹ https://www.nytimes.com/2023/01/11/us/politics/biden-classified-documents.html

² See Higher Education Act of 1965 §117, 20 U.S.C. §1011f (1998).

³ <u>https://www.cnn.com/2023/01/12/politics/joe-biden-classified-documents-counsels-office/index.html</u>

⁴ https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/12/27/2022-28119/agency-information-collection-activitiescomment-request-foreign-gifts-and-contracts-disclosures

⁵ <u>https://content.govdelivery.com/accounts/USED/bulletins/27b7801</u>

⁶ https://oversight.house.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/2023-01-18-Letter-UPenn-Penn-Biden-Center.pdf

 $^{^7\} https://www.nlpc.org/government-integrity-project/foreign-agent-probe-of-hunter-biden-should-include-upenn-and-nonprofit-group/$

- 2. All documents turned over by UPenn to the Department through its section 117 enforcement efforts; and
- 3. Any and all communications with or about, and documents provided to, the Department by UPenn since January 20, 2021.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Virginia Forces

Virginia Foxx Chairwoman U.S. House Committee on Education & the Workforce

James Comer

James Comer Member of Congress

fin Banks

Jim Banks Member of Congress

notice Stal

Michelle Steele Member of Congress